

Original Research Article

TRANSFUSION MEDICINE: FROM DONORS TO RECIPIENTS: A GENDER PERSPECTIVE

Abstract:

Objectives: To screen the donors for the frequency of ABO & Rh blood groups and gender contribution as blood donor in blood bank study at Qazi Hussian Ahmed Medical Complex Nowshera.

Material and Methods:

This retrospective observational study was carried out in the Blood bank of Qazi Hussain Ahmed Medical Complex, Nowshera from 25th April 2019 to 5th Nov 2019. A total of 279 donors were included in the study. Record was taken from available data in Blood bank of Qazi Husain Ahmed Medical Complex Nowshera. Donors & Recipients data were also recorded from the blood issuing form. ABO and Rh blood grouping were done by agglutination method using antisera A, antisera B and antisera D. Data was entered in SPSS 25th Version. Descriptive statistics was used for numerical variables like Hb%, Ferritin. Frequency and percentages were used for categorical variables like gender. Spearman correlation was used for categories of gender in the recipients and donors.

Results:

The total number of the donors was 279, about 243 donors Hemoglobin was available on the record. Mean with SD of Hemoglobin of donors was 11.59g/dl \pm 1.48. Mean with SD of Hemoglobin of the recipients was 8.19g/dl \pm 1.72. The frequency of the blood Group in Donors were; O+ (155, 55.6%), A+ (51, 18.3%), AB+ (23, 8.2%), B+ (22, 7.9%), O- & A- each (10, 3.6%), and B- & AB- each (4, 1.4%). The frequency of Rh positive blood group was 251(89.94%), and Rh negative was 28(10.03%).

Out of total 272(97.5%) of the Donors were males while only 7(2.5%) were female donors. Out of the recipients 206(73.8%) were females and 73(26.2%) were males. Spearman's correlation

Comment [a1]: Please avoid using 2 colons in one sentence. Substitute any one colon with dash '-'

Comment [a2]: study at blood bank of

Comment [a3]: spelling check of Husain or hussain ...please use any one throughout manuscript that is correct.

Comment [a4]: Data was analyzed using software

Comment [a5]: Spearman's

Comment [a6]: h

Comment [a7]: 89.94% (251)

Comment [a8]: 10.03% (28).

Comment [a9]: d

statistics showed that there was a mild downhill an inverse (negative) statistically significant correlation in gender groups of the donors and the recipients.

Comment [a10]: and

Conclusion:

The frequency of "Rh-positive blood group" was O, A, AB and B respectively. Blood Group O was recorded in 55% of the donors as major Rh positive blood group in our population. Male gender is main contributor as donor while female gender as major recipient.

Comment [a11]: please reframe the sentence to convey the meaning more clearly.

Comment [a12]: 'O'

Key Words: ABO Blood-Group System, Gender perspective, Nowshera

UNDER PEER REVIEW

INTRODUCTION:

Each year about 5 million people are transfused in United States. So far in literature about 400 red cells antigen have been identified. The inheritance of these blood group antigen is by Mendelian Fashion. In literature the ABO blood group system was first reported followed by the Rh blood group system. These both systems are vitally important for purposes of blood transfusion¹.

Comment [a13]: Receive blood transfusion

Comment [a14]: antigens

Comment [a15]: in

Comment [a16]: vital

The prevalence of blood group frequency is important for clinical purposes to help in blood transfusion services; it would also reduce the risk of erythroblastosis foetalis in the neonates².

A study from Islamabad reported that overall distribution of different blood groups in the target population of 1,521 donors was 35.50%, 28.27%, 26.89% and 9.34% for blood groups O, B, A and AB respectively³.

Women gender in general is under presented among the blood donor globally; this difference was statistically significant from the literature reports from Italy⁴. There is also a lengthy interval between the donations in female gender as compared to male gender⁴. If we apply it to the whole Europe it would not justify, an overview of the European blood donation shows no significant difference in gender groups with exception for Italian population (30% female donors) with male gender dominance⁵.

Comment [a17]: This is not applicable for whole Europe as

There has been an increase in interest in gender differences in transfusion medicine in the last decade. Many reason quoted in the literature that stress on equality in provision of services and contribution of both gender to quality of life led to the birth of gender medicine and gender health in 2008⁶.

Comment [a18]: reasons that are quoted in the literature highlight the stress

Comment [a19]: life that has led

In contrast to the above mentioned necessity of gender contribution, there is paucity of gender studies in the transfusion medicine. This has been in regards to the effect of gender on raising awareness among the potential donors, encouragement of repeated donations and in regard to whether the extracts/components of blood collected from male and female have different effects on the recipients^{1,3,6}.

Comment [a20]: regarding

Comment [a21]: reports

Many studies have reported the different proportion of donor in gender groups. One report showed 68% of the donors were males⁷.

A study from India reported that out of 508 total blood donors, 421 (82.9%) were males, while 87 (17.1%) were female⁸.

A study reported from Fauji Foundation hospital Rawalpindi reported that 97.05% of donors in their study population were males⁹.

Present study was therefore designed as to screen the donors for the frequency of different blood groups and gender contribution as donor and recipient in a blood bank study at Qazi Hussian Ahmed Medical Complex Nowshera.

Comment [a22]: Complex, Nowshera.

UNDER PEER REVIEW

MATERIAL AND METHODS:

This retrospective observational study was carried out in the Blood bank of Qazi Hussain Ahmed Medical Complex, Nowshera from 25th April 2019 to 5th Nov 2019. A total of 279 donors were included in the study. Record was taken from available data in Blood bank of Qazi Husain Ahmed Medical Complex Nowshera. Donors & Recipients data were also recorded from the blood issuing form. ABO and Rh blood grouping were done by agglutination method using antisera A and antisera B. Rh blood grouping was performed by using antisera D.

Comment [a23]: Delete extra dot.

Comment [a24]: b

Comment [a25]: Complex, Nowshera

Comment [a26]: Donors' & Recipients'

Comment [a27]: ABO blood grouping was done by agglutination method using antisera A and antisera B. Rh factor was determined by agglutination method using antisera D.

Comment [a28]: Donors that reported

All blood donors reported to the blood bank during study period were included irrespective of age and gender. Selection criteria followed in our blood bank was, age between 18 to 60 years, weight more than 50kg and the Hemoglobin of >11g/dl. All the Donors are carefully evaluated by consultant hematologists and blood bank medical officer through a detailed medical history and clinical examination. Exclusion criteria was any previous history of viral disease like Hep B and C and HIV, drug abuse, body tattooing/needling/piercing, previous transfusion of whole blood or blood component in the 6 months and or any renal, cardiac, pulmonary of hepatic diseases.

Comment [a29]: h

Comment [a30]: followed consisted of any previous

All the donors were screened for HBsAg, Anti HCV antibodies and HIV antibodies on ELISA using COBAS 311 (ROCHE) version in our lab after its installation in QHAMC in 2019. And now its official mandatory here to screen all blood donor with ELISA.

Comment [a31]: Now it is officially

Comment [a32]: donors

Data was entered in SPSS 25th Version. Descriptive statistics was used for Numerical variables like Hb, Ferritin. Frequency and percentages were used for categorical variables like gender. Spearman correlation was used for categories of gender in the recipients and donors.

Comment [a33]: 25th

Comment [a34]: n

Comment [a35]: f

Comment [a36]: Hb and Ferritin

Comment [a37]: Spearman's

RESULTS:

The total number of the donors was 279, about 243 donors Hemoglobin was available on the record. Mean with SD of Hemoglobin of donors was 11.59g/dl+ 1.48. Mean with SD of Hb of the recipients was 8.19g/dl+ 1.72. The serum ferritin of 171 recipients was available on record. Mean with SD of Serum Ferritin was 41.16ng/l+ 74.28 and SE OF Mean 5.67. (Table 1).

Comment [a38]: amongst them forabout 243 donors

Comment [a39]: h

Comment [a40]: h

Comment [a41]: f

The frequency of the blood Group in Donors were; O+ (155, 55.6%), A+ (51.18.3%), AB+ (23, 8.2%), B+ (22, 7.9%). The frequency of the negative groups were; O- &A- each (10, 3.6%), and B- &AB- each (4, 1.4%). (Table 2)

Comment [a42]: g

Comment [a43]: positive Rh factor

Comment [a44]: d

Comment [a45]: negative Rh factor

The frequency of Rh positive blood group was 251(89.94%), and Rh negative was 28(10.03%).

The gender distribution in donors and recipients were the eye opener for the researcher. Out of total 272(97.5%) of the Donors were males while only 7(2.5%) were female donors. Out of the recipients 206(73.8%) were females and 73(26.2%) were males. (Table 3)

Comment [a46]: d

Comment [a47]: (Table 3).

We tried to see the correlation of Gender of the donors with Gender of the recipients by calculating the Correlation Coefficient using Spearman's correlation statistics. It was observed that there was a mild downhill an inverse (negative) statistically significant correlation in gender groups of the donors and the recipients. Mean that when there are male predominance in donors groups would be seen inversely for the recipients with female predominance. (Table 4)

Comment [a48]: g

Comment [a49]: g

Comment [a50]: c

Comment [a51]: c

Comment [a52]: It implies that when there is male predominance in donor groups it would be seen inversely for the recipients with female predominance (Table 4).

Table 1. Descriptive Statistics of Hemoglobin of donors and the recipients and Ferritin of the recipients

		Hb of the Donors	Hb of the recipients	Ferritin of the Recipients
N	Valid	243	279	171
	Missing	36	0	108
Mean		11.59	8.19	41.16
Std. Error of Mean		.09	.10	5.67
Median		12.00	8.00	9.25
Std. Deviation		1.48	1.72	74.25
Range		12.00	7.30	379.53
Minimum		10.00	3.70	2.07
Maximum		2.00	11.00	381.60

Comment [a53]: h

Comment [a54]: f

Table 2. Frequency of Blood Group of donors

		Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
Valid	A+	51	18.3	18.3
	B+	22	7.9	26.2
	O+	155	55.6	81.7
	AB+	23	8.2	90
	A-	10	3.6	93.5
	B-	4	1.4	95
	O-	10	3.6	98.6
	AB-	4	1.4	100
	Total	279	100	

Comment [a55]: b

Comment [a56]: g

Table 3. Gender Distribution in donors and recipients

		Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
Donors	Male	272	97.5	97.5
	Female	7	2.5	100
	Total	279	100	
Recipients	Male	73	26.2	26.2
	Female	206	73.8	100
	Total	279	100	

Comment [a57]: d

Table 4. Correlations of Gender of the donors with Gender of the recipients

			Gender of the donors	Gender of the recipients
Spearman's rho	Gender of the donors	Correlation Coefficient	1.000	-.271**
		Sig. (2-tailed)	.	.000
		N	279	279
	Gender of the recipients	Correlation Coefficient	-.271**	1.000
		Sig. (2-tailed)	.000	.
		N	279	279

** . Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).

Comment [a58]: g

Comment [a59]: g

DISCUSSION:

In Pakistan more than 1.5 million bags of the blood are donated each year. Among these donors 65% is from relatives of the patient that is replacement donor while 25% from volunteer donors and about 10% from professional blood donors.^{10,11.}

Human blood is an essential element of human life with no substitute. World health organization estimates that if 1 person per thousand populations donates blood is generally the minimum need of a nation to meet the requirement of the blood. The requirement increases in advanced countries with more advanced health systems that require blood for multipurpose. The donation rate in developed countries is 3.8/1000 population that reduces to 3/1000 population in the developing countries^{12.}

In present study the frequency of the blood Group in Donors were; O+ (155, 55.6%), A+ (51.18.3%), AB+ (23, 8.2%), B+ (22, 7.9%). The frequency of the negative groups were; O- & A- each (10, 3.6%), and B- & AB- each (4, 1.4%). Going through the international literature from Tanzania, they reported that the most common blood group in their population was O (52.3%) and the most rare was AB (3.18%)¹³ that strongly coincides with our findings.

Another local study from Bannu KP, reported the frequency of blood groups in their donors as 134 (31.2%), 43 (10.1%), 116 (27%), 136 (31.7%) for blood groups A, AB, O and B, respectively.¹⁴

Iqbal M et al reported the frequency of ABO groups was A+ve, AB+ve, O+ve, A-ve, B-ve, and O-ve was 21.5%, 9.8%, 29.7%, 1.8%, 2.9%, and 2.5% respectively in population of Rawalpindi^{15.}

The frequency of Rh positive blood group was 251(89.94%), and Rh negative was 28(10.03%). Another study from Pakistan reported 97.7% of the donors in their set up were Rh positive and 2.3% were Rh negative^{11.} The distribution of Rh+ and Rh- blood groups was 92.2% and 7.8% respectively in donor population of Iqbal M et al^{15.}

Mean with SD of Hemoglobin donors was 11.59g/dl+ 1.48, the same has been reported in literature with donor selection of Mean with SD of Hemoglobin 14.65g/dl ± 1.58¹⁵ that coincides with our findings^{16.}

In present study, Out of total Donors, 272(97.5%) were males while only 7(2.5%) were female donors. Out of the recipients 206(73.8%) were females and 73(26.2%) were males.

Comment [a60]: Blood

Comment [a61]: estimates state that if 1 person per thousand of population donates blood it is generally

Comment [a62]: many purposes.

Comment [a63]: the present

Comment [a64]: d

Comment [a65]: negative Rh factor

Comment [a66]: In

Comment [a67]: they have

Comment [a68]: Follow journal's format of writing references.

Comment [a69]: Follow journal's format of writing references.

Comment [a70]: Follow journal's format of writing references.

Comment [a71]: h

Comment [a72]: h

We tried Spearman's correlation statistics and observed that there was a mild downhill an inverse (negative) statistically significant correlation in gender groups of the donors and the recipients.

Mean that when there is male predominance in donors groups would be seen inversely for the recipients with female predominance. The same has been observed in the Italian population⁴.

Another study from Rahim Yar khan published with finding of 97% male donor and 3% female proportion in donors that matches our findings¹⁷.

This gender difference is otherwise minimal in the European countries; Spain 46% of the donors are women, in Portugal 43%, in Belgium 45.4%, in the Netherlands 50%, in Denmark 50%, in France 50%, in the United Kingdom 53%, and in Finland 55%¹⁸.

The female gender fear is reported as reason for not donating the blood as fear from pricks, fear from collection process, needles, mistakes, feeling unwell are various factors reported in the literature, that supports that these concerns are more common in female gender and are main obstructers in blood donation in female gender^{19,20}. Hence it is clear and expected for our population with male dominance donors, that some differences in motives, with altruism more common in female gender distracts them from the donor category as compared to males.

Conclusion

We concluded that the frequency of "Rh-positive blood group" in our target population was, O,A B and AB. Blood Group O+ was recorded in 55% of the donors as major Rh positive blood group in our population. Male gender is main contributor as donor while female gender as major recipient.

We need to educate the women on the importance of blood donation, minimizing the fear inside the female gender, provision of friendly environment in blood taking compartments, training of staff on blood collection and using the tools of advocacy, communication and social mobilization on blood transfusion in under- presented gender group can improve the situation.

REFERENCES:

Comment [a73]: It implies that when there is male predominance in donor groups it would be seen inversely for the recipients with female predominance

Comment [a74]: Follow journal's format of writing references.

Comment [a75]: Women donors in Spain are 46%

Comment [a76]: as a reason

Comment [a77]: minimize

Comment [a78]: among

Comment [a79]: provide

Comment [a80]: train

Comment [a81]: communicate and socially mobilize

1. Khattak ID, Khan TM, Khan P, Shah SM, Khattak ST, Ali A. Frequency of ABO and Rhesus blood groups in District Swat, Pakistan. *J Ayub Med Coll Abbottabad*. 2008;20(4):127-9.
2. Nazli R, Haider J, Khan MA, Akhtar T, Aslam H. Frequency of ABO blood groups and RhD factor in the female population of District Peshawar. *Pak J Med Sci*. 2015;31(4):984-6
3. Khan MS, Ahmed Z, Hanif R, Zaman S, Ali I, Ur Rahman J. Relationship between blood groups and male infertility. *J Ayub Med Coll Abbottabad*. 2010; 22(1): 154-6.
4. Bani M, Strepparava M, Giussani B. Gender differences and frequency of whole blood donation in Italian donors: even though I want to, I cannot? *Transfus Apher Sci*. 2014;50(1):81-6
5. Bani M, Giussani B. Gender differences in giving blood: a review of the literature. *Blood Transfus*. 2010 Oct; 8(4): 278–287.
6. Franconi F, Brunelleschi S, Steardo L, Cuomo V. Gender differences in drug responses. *Pharmacol Res*. 2007;55:81–95.
7. Federación Española de Donantes de Sangre, available at <http://www.telefonica.net/web2/donasangre/papelfenadose4.htm> (last consulted, February 2010).
8. Choudhury P, Chakrabarti JS, Choudhury PS. Frequency and distribution of blood groups in blood donors of Tripura. *The Health Agenda*. 2014;2(2): 158-161.
9. Chaudhary IA, Samiullah, Khan SS, Masood R, Asif M, et al. Seroprevalence of hepatitis b and c among the healthy blood donors at fauji foundation hospital, rawalpindi *Pak J Med Sci*, 2007; 23(1):1 64-67
10. Zafar N. A survey of blood transfusion practices. *J Coll Physicians Surg Pak* 2000;10(3):90-2.
11. Asif N, Kokhar N, Ilahi F. Seroprevalence of HBV, HCV and HIV infection among voluntary non remunerated and replacement donors in Northern Pakistan. *Pak J Med Sci* 2004;20(1):24-8.
12. www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/fs279/en/

13. Jahanpour O, Pyuza JJ, Ntiyakunze EO et al. ABO and Rhesus blood group distribution and frequency among blood donors at Kilimanjaro Christian Medical Center, Moshi, Tanzania. *BMC Res Notes*. 2017; 10: 738.
14. Nazl R, Haider J, Khan MA, Akhtar T, Aslam H. Frequency of ABO blood groups and RhD factor in the female population of District Peshawar. *Pak J Med Sci*. 2015; 31(4): 984–986.
15. Iqbal M, Niazi A, Tahir M. Frequency of ABO and Rh blood groups in Healthy Donors . *Journal of Rawalpindi Medical College (JRMC)*; 2009;13(2):92-94.
16. Moghadam AM, Natanzi MM, Djalali M, Saedisomeolia A, Javanbakht MH et al. Relationship between blood donors' iron status and their age, body mass index and donation frequency. *Sao Paulo Med. J*. 2013;131(6): 377-83. <https://doi.org/10.1590/1516-3180.2013.1316554>
17. Malik MR, Majid S, Laghari MS. Determinants of blood donation behaviour of general public in Pakistan," *Pakistan Journal of Medical and Health Sciences*, 2010;4(1): 137-42.
18. Bani M, Giussani B. Gender differences in giving blood: a review of the literature. *Blood Transfus*. 2010; 8(4): 278–287.
19. Steele WR, Schreiber GB, Guiltinan A, et al. The role of altruistic behavior, empathetic concern, and social responsibility motivation in blood donation behavior. *Transfusion*. 2008;48:43–54.
20. Buciuniene I, Stonienė L, Blazeviciene A, et al. Blood donors' motivation and attitude to non-remunerated blood donation in Lithuania. *BMC Public Health*. 2006;6:166.